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          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Good evening.

          3  I am going to ask those in the back who are

          4  standing, if you can take a seat, we are about to

          5  begin.

          6                 I am Council Member Guillermo

          7  Linares, from Manhattan, and I wanted to welcome

          8  every one of you to this hearing this evening.

          9                 This is part of a series of hearings

         10  that we are posing sponsored by the Manhattan

         11  Delegation. This is the third hearing that we are

         12  holding, we had one on the lower east side, and last

         13  night we had one in Harlem. This is a Northern

         14  Manhattan hearing, Washington Heights.

         15                 We are holding this hearing in the

         16  wake of the death and the killing of a young man,

         17  Amadou Diallo, the young immigrant, that has created

         18  outrage in New York City, particularly in

         19  communities Northern Manhattan, communities that

         20  have a large concentration of Hispanics. But also

         21  among the poor communities there is a sense of

         22  outrage over the death of this young man, and these

         23  hearings are the way for the communities, people of

         24  all backgrounds, to share how they feel, their

         25  concerns, ideas on how we can address as a City
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          2  Council this situation that we face.

          3                 And we are prepared, once we gather

          4  up all of the information, to introduce legislative

          5  remedies and take action to make sure that this does

          6  not continue.

          7                 We want to hear your experiences, the

          8  experience that you have had. It just doesn't have

          9  to be a negative experience, it could be a positive

         10  experience as you have had involving the police.

         11                 We are hoping that your voice is the

         12  strength to the leadership of the City, so that the

         13  changes, the fundamental changes that are needed now

         14  in the Police Department take place, not only

         15  because we, the City Council, commit ourselves to do

         16  that, but also we want your voices to be heard by

         17  the Mayor, by the Police Commissioner and by others

         18  that need to be part of the response that we have to

         19  have.

         20                 I would like to say a few words in

         21  Spanish. I would like to introduce the colleagues

         22  that are accompanying me. The co-chair of the

         23  Manhattan Delegation, and someone that pulled us

         24  together out of concern with this issue that is

         25  affecting all of us, Ronnie Eldridge, who is here
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          2  representing the upper west side and has been a

          3  leader, making sure that we are proactive in terms

          4  of this issue.

          5                 And the newly elected member of the

          6  Council, Christine Quinn, welcome. And the person

          7  who is coming up to the stage, Council Member Phil

          8  Reed, he was at the hearings that took place in

          9  Central Harlem and East Harlem as well.

         10                 (Mr. Linares addresses the audience

         11  in Spanish.)

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I am very

         13  happy to be here tonight to listen to you and your

         14  experiences. Last night I attended the forum that

         15  Council Members Reed and Perkins had in Central

         16  Harlem, and it was a very telling experience for me.

         17                 I come from a district that is made

         18  up mostly of people not of color. We have police who

         19  are compact, we think overreactively as citizens,

         20  and I must say that our experiences do not come near

         21  those experiences that I heard last night.

         22                 I am anxious to hear from all of you

         23  tonight. I hope that many people will bring the

         24  messages and we will be able to make some meaningful

         25  changes in the way we are living in New York City.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Council

          4  Member Reed, do you want to say something?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Just glad to be

          6  here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: We want to

          8  hear more from you.

          9                 I would like to say now that those,

         10  let me say in Spanish, but first English. For those

         11  of you who do not understand English we will have

         12  Jose on my staff translate for the record.

         13                 And I want to share also that

         14  everything that we are expressing here is made for

         15  the official record of the City of New York. So your

         16  testimony will be with us so that we can use it for

         17  the purpose of introducing legislation.

         18                 For those of you who may have come in

         19  and not filled one out, in order to speak this

         20  evening we ask that you fill out this appearance

         21  form. And now I will translate that into Spanish.

         22  The Sergeant-At-Arms here, to my left, your right,

         23  has the forms.

         24                 (In Spanish.)

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: We are going
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          2  to try to have everyone speak, everyone who is here.

          3  We will allow three minutes for the presentation.

          4                 Let me ask Barbara Moore, followed by

          5  Lucy Turull. Followed by Carlos Rodriguez.

          6                 MS. MOORE: Good evening, City Council

          7  members.

          8                 I think that we have issues to

          9  address. We have complaints that community things

         10  have gotten lost. I am President of Tenant

         11  Association 469, West 166th Street.

         12                 Over the years the tenants have been

         13  framed or their children. They greatly are wronged

         14  incident after incident. There are issues from you,

         15  as the Council, from the Police Department, as well

         16  as our communities that we felt should have been

         17  addressed. They were not.

         18                 None of us want to lose our children.

         19  That is the future of America. Whether it is the

         20  immigrant that just came here, and everyone who is

         21  the immigrant here, there is a promise and you are

         22  responsible to make sure that the right to life is

         23  given to everyone.

         24                 There is not a value judgment on a

         25  person's color or on language that someone does not
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          2  understand, the Police Department should understand

          3  they are to protect us, we, the citizens of the

          4  City, as well as Washington Heights.

          5                 We know our history very well, as a

          6  native American, African-American, there are two

          7  things you understand will not be tolerated in

          8  Washington Heights: one, the idea of closing blocks.

          9  What do you think they are saying? Is this a

         10  reservation? Is this the ghetto? We know our

         11  history. We will not repeat it.

         12                 Who would you ask in this community,

         13  your streets, you cannot tell who is a law-abiding

         14  citizen coming home from C-Town with a shopping bag?

         15  How could you misunderstand that? You say that you

         16  are going to have sensitivity training, kneejerk

         17  reactions 41 times because one officer fired a

         18  bullet? We have looked out of our windows, we see

         19  drivers, some have been arrested and they haven't

         20  done anything wrong, but they are of the same

         21  profile as the person that is in their cab. That is

         22  wrong.

         23                 Our children, our adults are spoken

         24  to disrespectfully. Do you legislate that? I came to

         25  say to the City Council, at sometime address that.
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          2  Go to a C-Town, watch the children as they get out

          3  of school, hit those streets and really see what is

          4  happening. Please address our issues.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Regina Mehoe

          7  will be next after these next two speakers.

          8                 MS. TURULL: My son was beaten by a

          9  racist gang on May 14th of '97, and my son almost

         10  died. I still haven't seen anyone come up to defend

         11  us, my Councilperson. Now, Mr. Linares, I have gone

         12  to your office several times. I have been in with

         13  newspaper clippings, you told me you were going to

         14  call me, it is a year, I haven't heard from you. How

         15  will you address it? Because my son and I are from

         16  Washington Heights.  We have been here all our

         17  lives.

         18                 I have newspaper clippings of my son

         19  doing good work here in Washington Heights, now he

         20  did work for Washington Heights; where is Washington

         21  Heights for him? You are our Councilman, but when I

         22  came to you for help, I can't say that I got help

         23  from you. And I happen to know you did not write to

         24  the people you said you would write to. This gang

         25  has now beaten two other kids, with bats, pipes and
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          2  police nightsticks; how will you address that?

          3                 My son had a brain tumor coming out

          4  of his ear, and so the police, instead of letting

          5  the ambulance take him, the police put him in a

          6  squad car and drove around with him. This happened

          7  at 3:20 in the afternoon, I didn't find out until

          8  6:00, 5:30 in the afternoon; how was that addressed?

          9                 And not to change the subject, but

         10  that is police brutality, they were waiting for my

         11  son to die. They didn't have to use their own hands,

         12  they had done nothing to cover it up. Had the

         13  Council people and the people in office helped,

         14  these other two victims wouldn't be.

         15                 And I have another question: Where is

         16  the outreach? I will admit it, my problem is across

         17  the street, the problem is across the street, and I

         18  didn't know this was happening here until I heard it

         19  on the news this morning. I mean, I think that is

         20  kind of poor outreach. I was here a few weeks ago

         21  for a community meeting, there was a lot of outreach

         22  then.

         23                 So, I am sorry to be so rude, but I

         24  have had two years of no rights. I have had two

         25  years of how we can come out here and fight for my

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  son's rights, and the rights of all of the other

          3  victims that have suffered at the hands of police

          4  brutality and corruption, because if there wasn't

          5  corruption, there wouldn't be the brutality.

          6                 And people in office, that once they

          7  get into office, they literally forget about us. We

          8  vote you guys in there and we need your help.

          9                 And can I say something in Spanish?

         10  (In Spanish).

         11                 MS. MEHOE: My name is Regina Mehoe. I

         12  am a member of the 33rd Precinct Town Hall and lots

         13  of other civic organizations.

         14                 You are telling us that you will do

         15  everything within your power as a City Councilman

         16  and Councilwoman to halt the Street Crime Unit that

         17  is the position in the Harlem community.

         18                 Two weeks ago I was present at a

         19  meeting at the 33rd Precinct with you and Stan

         20  Michels was present, as well as a representative

         21  from Reingall's Office, and Andy Farrell was also

         22  there, where Captain McCarthy was supposed to close

         23  another four blocks in our neighborhood, the 155 to

         24  the 159.

         25                 In order to do that, he has to
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          2  criminalize that area. This is a high crime area, so

          3  therefore the Street Crime Unit can act with

          4  impunity on their so-called plight in drugs, which

          5  gives them the right to stop citizens and to violate

          6  people's constitutional rights and to demand to see

          7  ID before you can walk on your own street or come

          8  into your own home.

          9                 If any of you call to close the 161,

         10  162, 3 and 4, you have lost a good sense of the

         11  police brutality. In fact, there was a pregnant

         12  woman who was beaten severely and was sent to the

         13  hospital because the football hit the police officer

         14  who was guarding the closed street. Once you say an

         15  area is a high crime area and you criminalize it,

         16  then your Street Crime Unit can come in and practice

         17  police brutality and you can cover everything up in

         18  the name of fighting drugs.

         19                 If you are opposed to police

         20  brutality, will you stand up with this community,

         21  will we get your promise that you will back up

         22  fighting Captain McCarthy's closing of those streets

         23  to allow further police brutality. In your call will

         24  you tell us you are against police brutality but

         25  then you will condone Captain McCarthy's
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          2  initiatives?

          3                 If either one of you can answer?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: The purpose

          5  of the hearing is really to allow your voice to

          6  speak and we are here to listen tonight.

          7                 But believe me, we will record this

          8  and this is your testimony, we will take it and work

          9  with it.

         10                 MS. MEHOE: When will we be able to

         11  get answers as a community? Will you have another

         12  forum where you will answer us?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Actually the

         14  City Council is having a hearing, and we would hope

         15  that all of you will attend, specifically on the

         16  Street Crimes Unit.

         17                 MS. MEHOE: Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I think

         19  there is very serious consideration among many of

         20  our members that we do not approve of that as a

         21  strategy, but we are still having a hearing where

         22  the police will be asked questions and where you

         23  will be able to speak.  It is March 22nd. I think it

         24  is at 10:00 in the morning, at City Hall.

         25                 MS. MEHOE: Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: We would

          3  urge that you come out.

          4                 MS. MEHOE: We will come out in mass.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Because if

          6  you remember, when we had hearings on the Civilian

          7  Review Board, it was the people that came that

          8  really changed the Council's, the members of the

          9  Council's minds, and they have supported it

         10  originally. So it is very important.

         11                 MS. MEHOE: We will make sure we go.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I would like

         13  to introduce Council Member Miller.

         14                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: I will speak in both

         15  languages, but first I will speak in my own

         16  language, my native language, which is Spanish.

         17                 (Testimony given in Spanish.)

         18                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Do you want me to

         19  translate it?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes.

         21                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: All right. My name is

         22  Carlos Rodriguez, I am from the Dominican Coalition.

         23  We have more than 200 young kids in our programs.

         24  For more than 11 years we have done this without the

         25  support of any elected officials or any private
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          2  agency in Washington Heights or New York City. These

          3  youngsters are from the streets to the universities,

          4  to become leaders of our communities. But what is

          5  unfortunate, these are the same young kids that are

          6  daily harassed by the Police Department. I was the

          7  same in Spanish Harlem, then I worked at Columbian

          8  Presbyterian Hospital, working with children with

          9  AIDS, that were victims of police brutality. There

         10  was someone, when she was coming from her

         11  grandmother's house to her house, she is partially

         12  paralyzed, her hands, and the cops, they were just

         13  going after her, chasing her, and she turned around

         14  and she had her hand closed, she has not been able

         15  to open her hands because they are paralyzed, they

         16  forced -- for the first time in her life her hands

         17  were opened by the police officers. She was in

         18  severe pain. The only thing that she could do was

         19  call me and we went to see her and we put a Civilian

         20  Complaint Review Board complaint against this police

         21  officer.

         22                 Now, the one thing that we have to

         23  stress is that the closing of these blocks is to

         24  cause them latitude to abuse our young people, and

         25  this stuff will follow them for the rest of their
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          2  lives.

          3                 I mean, I remember on 161st, 160th,

          4  they speculated, which I think is the issue, there

          5  was a lady, she was threatened just because she was

          6  walking down the street, they see a criminal. They

          7  had her profiled. There was a meeting held by the

          8  33rd Precinct Command, Captain McCarthy, and with

          9  Mr. Linares, as well as Mr. Espada, and there is no

         10  purpose here, they both went and they both supported

         11  a new initiative to close down these blocks, the

         12  same initiative that we, as a community, have

         13  opposed. If we have to get arrested and they close

         14  159, 158, we do not want to be arrested, and we

         15  believe that you as a Councilman should oppose

         16  something like that, and we as a community should be

         17  standing tall and not allow our civil rights --

         18  because that's a violation of our civil rights. We

         19  do not need our civil rights being sacrificed just

         20  because we need protection.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Juan Herarte,

         23  Muhammad Abdullah, Jose Guzman.

         24                 MR. HERARTE: Good evening. I have

         25  been in this community over four years. In reference
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          2  to the initiatives, nobody is willing to give up

          3  their state and federal constitutional rights and I

          4  would like to request of you a recipe in which you

          5  can put a stop to the brutality by the precincts,

          6  and are you willing to help us individuals to

          7  protect our constitutional rights?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          9                 MR. GUZMAN: (Not identified in

         10  English. Testimony is in Spanish.)

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Can you

         12  mention his name?

         13                 INTERPRETER: Jose Guzman. He is a

         14  grocery owner for 15 years, and he say he has great

         15  respect for the police. He say the police is to

         16  protect, not to abuse. He said in the last four

         17  months his grocery store got about five different

         18  rates. They got summons for drinking, which is not

         19  true. Police went there harassing and asking for a

         20  name. The Department, when they get the small

         21  summons, they will be hit with a bigger one. He said

         22  by the end of the year they will see many different

         23  gift for the merchants (sic), the police will come

         24  and say there is something illegal and get summoned

         25  because of that.
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          2                 He claimed that the other day he was

          3  down at 171st and the police officer asked for an

          4  ID, accused him of either being a drug buyer or drug

          5  pusher. He said the police should be educated in

          6  terms of their communities.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Muhammad

          8  Abdullah.

          9                 MR. ABDULLAH: Yes, Honorable

         10  Councilpersons.

         11                 Yesterday from 137th Street to beyond

         12  145th Street, it was informed that the police was

         13  stopping a lot of the citizens, and were doing an

         14  identification check, and besieged the community in

         15  a proportion that is unlike any of the other

         16  communities.

         17                 I am sure that the Honorable Eldridge

         18  does not have that experience in her community.

         19                 And this is very important because it

         20  was communities composed primarily of recently

         21  arrived Latino and Dominicans and of course

         22  African-Americans.

         23                 I believe that this is done because

         24  our people basically do not know much about their

         25  constitution of rights and perhaps because the
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          2  leaders that have represented the community have

          3  agreed to, with the police to supervise and police

          4  aggressively the community, instead of solving the

          5  problems that we confront on a social aspect.

          6                 The closing of the blocks, we had a

          7  meeting with Captain McCarthy, 159th Street. He says

          8  that they are model blocks. They model, he says,

          9  standard to be followed or imitated. He says that

         10  they are for preventing crime.

         11                 Now, the statistics that they gave us

         12  is that the crime rate has dropped; however, he

         13  didn't give us the statistics about the community

         14  complaints police harassments and police brutality

         15  and police violation of civil rights that act as an

         16  increase in this community.

         17                 And I feel that, especially,

         18  Councilman Linares and Espada, to be careful with

         19  the closing of the blocks, because there is no other

         20  community in the New York City area that is allowing

         21  this to happen, except in Washington Heights. Why is

         22  it Washington Heights? Because Washington Heights

         23  community is not yet organized and the community is

         24  allowing it and we are not protesting this

         25  situation.
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          2                 Moreover, the communities in

          3  Washington Heights are being politicized, and I

          4  think this is preparing a warfare in a sense.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Bernard

          7  Kleinert, Bonifiaro Figuereo, Jose Puente.

          8                 Just give me a second to introduce

          9  colleagues that have arrived, from the lower east

         10  side, Council Member Margarita Lopez. And sponsoring

         11  this Speakout this evening with me, as a

         12  representative of Northern Manhattan, is Council

         13  Member Stanley Michels.

         14                 We have just been joined by Council

         15  Member Perkins. And I would like to introduce, I

         16  would like to identify our Assemblyman and Speaker

         17  in the State Assembly, Dennis Fratenberg (phonetic).

         18  Welcome.

         19                 MR. KLEINERT: Good evening. My name

         20  is Bernie Kleinert, and I own a jewelry store on the

         21  corner of 181st.  The first thing I would like to

         22  say is, being a merchant in this area for 20 years,

         23  I can attest to the fact that everything the people

         24  who have preceded me have said about police is

         25  absolutely true. I am not anti-cop but unfortunately
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          2  they are pulling people out of a car and without

          3  rhyme or reason and I think it has to be stopped.

          4                 Now, for my own situation, back on

          5  June 4th, 1997, the police raided my jewelry store.

          6  Unbeknownst to the Police Department, there was a

          7  video audio surveillance camera running all the time

          8  as they came in, and when I mentioned it to them,

          9  they unplugged it.

         10                 They came in without a search

         11  warrant, they attempted to break down the drawers,

         12  they came with about 15 guys, all with weapons, and

         13  threatened the people, I have it on video. I

         14  reported it to the Internal Affairs and they have

         15  done nothing about it. They threatened to kill my

         16  employees.

         17                 They made off with a substantial

         18  amount of jewelry, all of which hasn't been

         19  returned, I sued them in Federal Court, and they

         20  settled with me for $7,500, which puts me about

         21  $10,000 in the hole.

         22                 So, point to this conversation is,

         23  they made out false tapes, and I can prove that.

         24  They made out false tapes. What they do is they come

         25  into the store and they talk amongst themselves and
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          2  say criminal things. Then they say that they told us

          3  that they were showing us stolen merchandise. Well,

          4  I have this on video tape and I can prove that no

          5  such conversation ever happened.

          6                 What actually happened was that they

          7  have their own fictitious tape and then they had a

          8  search warrant and then they arrested two of my

          9  people. I had a middle-aged Dominican woman working

         10  for me, they told her to get down, she got down on

         11  her knees, and wasn't getting up, they literally

         12  slamdunked here into the floor. All of the

         13  basketball fans know what a slamdunk is, and the

         14  problem is, looking around here there aren't enough

         15  people who have come forward, even my two employees

         16  were put in jail. They were arrested for possession

         17  of stolen merchandise, that was pleaded down to

         18  disorderly conduct. They gave me $7,500.

         19                 Can you imagine, they gave me money

         20  that they are plea bargaining down to disorderly

         21  conduct, that the CCRB found substantial reasons to

         22  bring the police officers to trial. And worst of

         23  all, my employee's nine-year-old child was brought

         24  in the street and frisked her. Not because she is

         25  Dominican, but she is a Dominican girl, she is
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          2  nine-years-old, she is walking in the street, a

          3  whole bunch of goons run up and start to frisk her.

          4  What kind of a world are we living in? I mean, this

          5  is outrageous. You people have to do something.

          6                 I admit as a Mayor, Giuliani has

          7  gotten much better crime statistics, but he's

          8  tearing up the Fourth Amendment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Bonifiario

         10  Figuereo.

         11                 MR. FIGUEREO: (In Spanish).

         12                 THE INTERPRETER: He said good evening

         13  to the Council members. He say he has been here in

         14  the United States for more than 30 years and he has

         15  held different jobs throughout that period. He say

         16  that more than 30 years that he has been here he has

         17  never seen so much repression in our community.

         18                 He say that Mayor Giuliani is acting

         19  as a dictator and he should be in consultation with

         20  you, the Council members.

         21                 He say that another measure that the

         22  police is doing is taking on, grabbing these

         23  youngsters, 15, 16 years old, and pose as 21,

         24  sending them to the grocery stores to buy cigarettes

         25  or beer and then going after the store and he says
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          2  that's not fair.

          3                 He has now worked as a taxi driver,

          4  and he said the police stalking taxi drivers for no

          5  reason and continuing to summons them, and believe

          6  it or not he say that the taxi driver helps to fight

          7  crime, because when everybody is sleeping they are

          8  out there at 3:00 in the morning, and they call in

          9  any crime that they see.

         10                 He also say that when he see the

         11  police car coming, he doesn't know if the car is

         12  going to protect or to hurt him.

         13                 He questioned why checkpoints had to

         14  be done downtown in certain neighborhoods. That's

         15  what I basically want to say.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Jose Puente.

         17                 If you came in late, we ask you, if

         18  you want to testify just fill out this form, this

         19  slip of paper. The Sergeant-at-Arms has it.

         20                 MR. PUENTE: (In Spanish.)

         21                 THE INTERPRETER: He said with this

         22  meeting, he mentioned the bell of justice has

         23  already rung.

         24                 He mentioned Giuliani got into office

         25  by the 47 percent of the Hispanic votes, and that
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          2  Giuliani's racism is not something new. It has been

          3  there since he was in office, and held office. And

          4  he mentioned why is the meeting being held in

          5  Washington Heights, and not in neighborhoods like

          6  Bensonhurst.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          8                 I would like to call Victor Peralta,

          9  and while he comes up I want to announce that

         10  outside we have a table with representatives from

         11  the CCRB. The CCRB, the Civilian Complaint Review

         12  Board, where complaints are reported on the police,

         13  and they have information there and forms, so make

         14  sure that if you have a complaint, you stop by that

         15  table.

         16                 MR. PERALTA: Good evening. I was a

         17  student at Bronx Community College, and I have been

         18  out of school now, and I was on my way home. I

         19  stopped in a store and the man said I was harassing

         20  his wife and he would call the cops. I said to him

         21  that I didn't know that that girl was married, and

         22  I, you know, apologized. He wasn't real comfortable

         23  with that, so he followed me for nearly two blocks.

         24  When we reached Broadway there were two police

         25  officers standing over there, and just when we were
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          2  upon this police officer and this other individual

          3  tried to assault me.

          4                 The police officer decided to take

          5  the case, you know, to himself. I was beaten up

          6  badly by the police officer. They throw me on the

          7  floor, they kicked my head. I was arrested. I spent

          8  three days in jail. I had to pay $1,500 to come out.

          9  And the charges were then that I was the one that

         10  assaulted him.

         11                 I had to depend on The Legal Aid

         12  Society, and after my experience with The Legal Aid

         13  Society, and the hopelessness as it was, wasn't

         14  good.

         15                 I guess that The Legal Aid Society is

         16  not there to represent us. They made my case look

         17  impossible. They said there is no way you can win

         18  this case.

         19                 They said here in Manhattan they are

         20  prejudice, and you are from Washington Heights, I

         21  don't think that you have a chance.

         22                 Also, the judge was biased too. The

         23  judge said to me that he thought if I decided to go

         24  to trial and I lose, I will get the maximum and I

         25  would be a candidate for deportation.
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          2                 But then he says, well, if you plead

          3  guilty I will take that into consideration and I

          4  will dismiss your case. I said, well, I guess I have

          5  no choice. They said if I don't plead guilty I will

          6  go to jail. Well, I decided to plead guilty, which I

          7  did.

          8                 But then I decided to investigate the

          9  case myself and after that I do a lot of reading.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES:   Can you sum

         11  up.

         12                 MR. PERALTA: Yes.

         13                 I do consider that it was a set-up by

         14  the Police Department, that they set me up and the

         15  two police officers were there waiting for me. And I

         16  also think that the police report, the accusation

         17  that they have against me never, ever reached the

         18  grand jury in order for them to decide if that case

         19  should go to trial. But the Legal Aid Department

         20  never showed me the report. Instead what they did

         21  show me was a picture, showing a mark that the

         22  police claimed that I wasn't on the bend (sic), and

         23  after they show me that picture in the report, the

         24  top of the report that the police have was the only

         25  thing that I saw, and for me to go into the jury,
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          2  and the police say they have this evidence against

          3  me --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What happened

          5  in court? What was the result?

          6                 MR. PERALTA: The result? I pled

          7  guilty.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Pled guilty.

          9

         10  What was the sentence?

         11                 MR. PERALTA: After I pled guilty the

         12  judge said, well, if you plead guilty you can go as

         13  I told you. You will go to a friend of mine who has

         14  a claim, and you will be seen, and in a couple of

         15  weeks you will be out of it.

         16                 It wasn't like that. I was spending

         17  like over a year, going to Brooklyn every week to

         18  see this fellow and after the end of the year the

         19  judge gave me five years probation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Did you file

         23  a Civilian Complaint?

         24                 MR. PERALTA: Yes, I filed a Civilian

         25  Complaint. I went to the CCRB. And also, my
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          2  experience with the CCRB was very negative.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: When was this?

          4                 MR. PERALTA: When I went to the CCRB,

          5  I went a couple of years ago. The CCRB, it took them

          6  like five or six months to give me a response. And

          7  when they give you a response, they say, well, we

          8  have reviewed the case and the police acted within

          9  our police guidelines.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Nelson

         11  Camacho. Amanda Devecka-Rinear and Vivian Dennis.

         12                 MR. CAMACHO: (In Spanish).

         13                 THE INTERPRETER: His name is Nelson

         14  Camacho, and he is representing the working class,

         15  taxi federation.

         16                 He is claiming that the racism is

         17  being used against the taxi drivers. He mentioned he

         18  had an accident and the police thought that he was

         19  drunk and handcuffed him. He say that when the

         20  police see taxi drivers, they are going after them

         21  as enemies. He say also when they give the summons,

         22  the taxi driver has no legal ground. He said at the

         23  Police Department, the taxi driver is the one who

         24  come back and committed the crime and it's wrong.

         25                 Thank you very much. That's all.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 MS. DEVECKA-RINEAR: I am Amanda

          3  Devecka, I am here representing New York City Police

          4  Watch.

          5                 New York City Police Watch is a

          6  private organization that is not affiliated with the

          7  City or with the CCRB, and what we do is we document

          8  the violence of police brutality, and if a certain

          9  neighborhood or certain police officer, we do this

         10  to bring these people to court, and we also give

         11  free legal advice and referral.

         12                 Right now we are working on a case

         13  with the Center for Constitutional Rights on a class

         14  action suit against the Street Crimes Unit, which is

         15  the unit that murdered Amadou Diallo. It is an

         16  injunctive police suit, we are suing to get the

         17  whole thing shut down, and we are looking for as

         18  many plaintiffs as possible.

         19                 Sometimes it is difficult to tell if

         20  it is a Street Crimes Unit, but there are certain

         21  ways to know. They are out after 6:00 p.m., if they

         22  are plainclothes officers and if they stop and frisk

         23  you, that is probably a Street Crimes Unit, and if

         24  you have been stopped or know of people who have

         25  been stopped, call and document it. Or call anyway,
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          2  even if it is not the Street Crimes Unit to create a

          3  record and possibly make a case.

          4                 The number is out there on flyers in

          5  Spanish and English for New York City Police Watch.

          6  Thank you for your time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Vivian

          8  Dennis.

          9                 MS. DENNIS: Good evening. My name is

         10  Vivian Dennis. I live in Washington Heights and I

         11  work with Community League.

         12                 One night about 6:00 I was coming

         13  home from work. I guess they were that undercover

         14  police officers, they were in a van -- two vans. I

         15  walked down past Amsterdam Avenue, and I live on

         16  70th, I am going across the street, these van doors

         17  open up, rush out, I am trying to get out of the

         18  policemen's way because I know they are going to

         19  shoot me and say I was going to shoot them. I had a

         20  pocketbook and my briefcase. When I got back to the

         21  corner of Amsterdam and 151, a tall police officer

         22  in plainclothes, they didn't show me any ID. He told

         23  me in these words "get the fuck up against the

         24  wall". I said, "I am coming from work." He says,

         25  "Shut up and get the fuck up against the wall." I
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          2  got up against the wall. Here I am a mother of two

          3  kids, and I am a grandmother. I have never in my

          4  life felt like I felt that night. They had me up

          5  against that wall for 45 minutes. Everybody in the

          6  neighborhood knows me, too. They are telling them,

          7  no, not that lady. That lady helps people in the

          8  community. She hasn't done anything. But they

          9  refused to move. They just stood there. They went

         10  through my pocketbook. The woman officer had the

         11  nerve to tell me to get my ID out of my pocketbook.

         12  They took everybody's keys. They went inside the

         13  building. They came back. They gave me my keys. A

         14  young man that calls me Holly, said I know that

         15  lady. He said what is her name? He said Vivian

         16  Dennis. Where does she live? Right around the

         17  corner. How do you know her? She also is in

         18  Community League. He told him, "Get the fuck off the

         19  car."

         20                 So they were taking their kids home

         21  from the day care school, everybody was looking at

         22  me, and I was crying, I was scared. I was shaking. I

         23  didn't know what they were going to do. They pulled

         24  a man into the van, I will never forget it, they

         25  took his keys and because he could not speak
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          2  English, they took him down. When everybody started

          3  to come in, because I was standing there, "all

          4  right, get the fuck out of here." I went back to the

          5  job, because I was so scared. I cried for two weeks.

          6  I watched them beat my two sons down in the street

          7  two weeks before. They had an argument. These two

          8  white cops showed no badge again. Jumped out at my

          9  two sons and started to beat them. My baby son has

         10  asthma, they put him in a choke hold. When I got

         11  around the corner I tried to explain to them that

         12  they were my sons. They are brothers. He told me

         13  "get the fuck out of the way". I went to the CCRB,

         14  then Internal Affairs, I haven't heard anything yet.

         15                 I pay taxes, I pay their salary. To

         16  have your children treated like that, it's not

         17  right. Somebody has to do something about it. I am

         18  more scared of them than I am of the dealers down

         19  the street because they will look after me. These

         20  cops, when they come, they either come to shoot you,

         21  arrest you or what, I don't trust them anymore. I

         22  don't trust no man in blue.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Reverend

         24  Kevin Devine. Father Devine, Good Shepherd Church,

         25  welcome. And Marios Reyhoso.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 REVEREND DEVINE: I think you still

          3  have a sense of humor. I was all set to settle back

          4  to watch St. John's basketball and there was the

          5  announcement of the organized meeting. And I said to

          6  myself, I do want to go down and listen to the

          7  comments, and they have been deeply moving, and I

          8  have taken each one very seriously and very close to

          9  my heart.

         10                 But I wanted to speak, not as a

         11  representative of Good Shepherd, not representative

         12  of any clergy, because I only found out about it a

         13  few minutes ago, I speak because I grew up in the

         14  neighborhood, love the neighborhood and keep coming

         15  back, and I have worked here for about seven years

         16  now.

         17                 You shared so many of the injustices

         18  and the abuses by the police, and they are to be

         19  taken very, very seriously. But you have also asked

         20  us to share positive experiences. I spent three,

         21  four hours this afternoon with Steven McDonald.  I

         22  don't know if many of you here know him.

         23                 Many years ago, and as a young police

         24  officer, he went out to patrol in Central Park, he

         25  was shot at point blank and was totally paralyzed.
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          2  And he was always smiling, and it is not a phony

          3  smile, it is a smile of a man who loves everyone.

          4                 But what is so spectacular about him,

          5  is the one he reached out to in all these ten years

          6  was the young man who shot him. He constantly kept

          7  in touch with him in prison. As the young man was

          8  being released, he asked to become his big brother.

          9  Steven shared with us confidentially kind of, he was

         10  a man who wants us to live as one family, so the

         11  experience is, and for fear of coming across as a

         12  sentimentalist, when they were meeting, I think it

         13  was at the Y, it was a year after the task force was

         14  established, and there were hundreds of

         15  representatives of all of Northern Manhattan there,

         16  and I couldn't believe it, because 90 percent were

         17  saying, hey, I will meet there. If you are going to

         18  cut back on your initiative, you won't be working to

         19  improve the quality of life of an invalid. And

         20  please get out those diggs, because I am not making

         21  this up. We need to hear some thanking the good

         22  police officers. So, while I take very seriously all

         23  the charges, I also take seriously all of the men

         24  that are doing their best.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 Makios Reyhoso. He is followed by

          3  Miguel Martinez.

          4                 Makios Reyhoso is not here?

          5                 Miguel Martinez.

          6                 MR. MARTINEZ: It is unfortunate that

          7  the attention has to be on police brutality.  In our

          8  community we had a horrible experience with a

          9  gentleman who, for no reason, was attacked, has a

         10  couple of broken ribs, has tactical damage by a

         11  police officer just because he looked suspicious.

         12                 From that case I think the attention,

         13  and for many other cases, the attention should have

         14  been focused on police brutality.

         15                 I don't think the question relies on

         16  police brutality.  I think the question relies on --

         17  I don't even want to say it. We had these hearings

         18  on police brutality and the recommendations that we

         19  made to Mayor Giuliani, well, nothing has happened.

         20  Is this going to also be part of those hearings in

         21  which victims and members of the community come out

         22  and express their concern and put out concrete ideas

         23  how we can better the Department, and yet we get no

         24  results?

         25                 I think it is time that we join
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          2  forces between our elected officials and our local

          3  officials, and so let's start regulating concrete

          4  things as to what we are going to do and how we are

          5  going to fix it.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Alice Sutter,

          8  and Francisco Mateo.

          9                 We have a representative of Borough

         10  President Virginia Fields here also.

         11                 MS. SUTTER: I am Alice Sutter. I am

         12  pretty horrified about the silence on this issue of

         13  police brutality. It is an issue that has been

         14  around for a long time, it is an issue that is

         15  insidious within the Police Department, and there

         16  are many wonderful individual officers, but that is

         17  not the issue.

         18                 The issue is that police are under

         19  pressure to protect property, under pressure to push

         20  homeless people out of the subways, they are under

         21  pressure to push the vendors out, and it really

         22  takes a lot on an officer's part not to become very

         23  hard and very poor to people.

         24                 In my spare time I have been working

         25  with the Biaz Foundation and I have just heard story
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          2  after story, not only the young people who have been

          3  killed and who have been beaten by the police, but

          4  of police going into people's homes and trying to

          5  push a criminal record on them, trying to harass and

          6  get testimony out of them and then cover up on the

          7  part of the District Attorneys' Office. And it is

          8  not just one story, it has been going on for awhile.

          9                 On Tuesday there was a wonderful

         10  meeting at the community league. It was really well

         11  attended, there were about 400, 500 people. They are

         12  great people to contact, people to work on this

         13  issue. They are trying to take back their

         14  communities. The 100 Black Officers were there, the

         15  Latino Officers Association. People are taking

         16  things seriously around the Diallo case, the

         17  officers are still free. There are people advocating

         18  violent solutions because they are so fed up. That

         19  has not happened at this meeting. We have talked

         20  about community activism and community control, and

         21  we need to work together on that.

         22                 There were some great ideas from ACRU

         23  from the 100 Black Officers on constitutional

         24  rights. The Latino Officer's Association had very

         25  wonderful proposals.
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          2                 And last, I am really concerned about

          3  the white silence on this issue, you know, they kind

          4  of stuck out like polka-dots at the meeting, and

          5  similarly to white silence around slavery, white

          6  silence around segregation, and I think that is

          7  really going to have to change.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: We also have

          9  a representative from Council Member Kathryn Freed's

         10  Office.

         11                 MR. MATEO: (In Spanish).

         12                 THE INTERPRETER: He said his name is

         13  Francisco Comateo, he is representing the Taxi

         14  Federation of New York. He emphasized that they are

         15  serving the community. I asked the question of what

         16  happened to them and he say they are giving them

         17  summonses everyday for different things.

         18                 One of the things that worries me is

         19  they will put the sign outside the window to let the

         20  passengers -- one was a sign to send kids, young

         21  children to school, they wanted to see what kind of

         22  car they are using or who are they sending the kid

         23  with, they get summonses for that.

         24                 They say they have to put the signs

         25  outside the car to identify them and they also get
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          2  summonses.

          3                 He said the Taxi and Limousine

          4  Commission should have an open line of communication

          5  with the basis on the federation, explain what they

          6  are doing right, what they are doing wrong.

          7  Sometimes when they summons a taxi driver that has a

          8  hack license, they will lose some, the taxi driver,

          9  the owner of the car, as well.

         10                 He says they are hard-working people.

         11  When the police approach them and the TLC, the

         12  police will have their guns drawn and the TLC will

         13  treat them like they were criminals. They are

         14  hard-working persons.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         16                 John Wasiniak. I hope I pronounced it

         17  right. Juan Heredia.

         18                 MR. WASINIAK: Members of the City

         19  Council, members of the community, my name is John

         20  Wasiniak, and I have lived in Washington Heights for

         21  over six years.

         22                 And I would like to address the area

         23  that I live in feels safer now than it did six years

         24  ago. I am talking about the area around Ft.

         25  Washington Avenue and 178th Street, the Port
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          2  Authority area, the George Washington Bridge area.

          3                 But I realize that because I am

          4  white, I am much less likely to be targeted for

          5  harassment by the police.

          6                 Before I lived in New York, I lived

          7  in an area of the country in a pretty white

          8  conservative section, where I kind of stood out as

          9  not status quo, and I did receive, not anything like

         10  the very cruel, very sad stories, but I did receive

         11  some police harassment so I know what that is like.

         12  I know how wrong that feels and how like a police

         13  state you can feel limited.

         14                 I just wanted to say that what

         15  happened in the Bronx, it upsets all of us, and we

         16  must not accept that. It is an incident like that,

         17  we can't accept that as a price for safer streets or

         18  safer neighborhoods.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MR. HEREDIA: (In Spanish).

         21                 THE INTERPRETER: He said his name is

         22  Juan Heredia. He is with Kennedy Car Service. He

         23  said they understand the high risk work of the

         24  police, but there are only a few people who are

         25  willing to make crime a way of life, only a few
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          2  people, and they only target because of few people

          3  choosing crime as a way of life.

          4                 In regard to taxi drivers, they say

          5  they see the police as the devil, and they give

          6  summonses for using the two-way radio. Some of the

          7  police officers are angered because of that. They

          8  say there is a big contradiction between the Taxi

          9  and Limousine Commission and the Police Department,

         10  and they should get their act together because

         11  sometimes they are insulted by the police and the

         12  Taxi and Limousine say that the police shouldn't be

         13  doing that, and the police say that they have the

         14  authority to do so.

         15                 He says that the Council members

         16  should have more oversight in terms of overseeing

         17  the police.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Tremaine

         19  Sayles, and Venus Williams.

         20                 MR. SAYLES: Good evening, Council

         21  members.

         22                 My name is Tremaine Sayles. I am

         23  representing the Black Caucus at the Columbia

         24  University School of Social Work. While I was

         25  President of the Black Caucus and a member of the
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          2  Latino Caucus, as well as the National Association

          3  of Black Social Workers.

          4                 First and foremost, I would like to

          5  invite the Council members who would like to attend

          6  a open community meetings of our forum where we are

          7  is attempting to have.

          8                 Our main concern is that we have

          9  heard the testimony, and our main concern is what

         10  are we going to do in the near future immediately,

         11  to actively make a change from what the problem is.

         12  The problem is there is an inconsistency from what

         13  is law for the police and what is actually happening

         14  in the community. And in fact, crime is on a

         15  decline, but our prison population is incline. There

         16  is a problem there.

         17                 Some of our suggestions include

         18  looking at the 48-hour rule. We think that is an

         19  answer. I won't say why, quite frankly, you or I for

         20  the rest of our lives, if we killed someone we would

         21  not be allowed 48 hours to think about what happened

         22  and to say recoup ourselves. We understand, without

         23  a doubt, that police work is very difficult. We

         24  understand what they are going through. You know,

         25  one of our biggest things is to look at the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  accountability. What do we need to do explicitly or

          3  specifically? It's a whole question of

          4  accountability. They are professionals, just as

          5  physicians, lawyers, you and I, but if any of us

          6  were to commit an act in which we felt and in which

          7  someone else felt was an improper practice, we can

          8  lose our license, we can be removed. However, if a

          9  police officer commits an act, and, again, it is not

         10  above the police. We all know and understand they

         11  all have a difficult job, and they are doing their

         12  best to do it. They need to get home, and we want

         13  them to get home, because we want them out there to

         14  continue to protect us. But when wrong things occur,

         15  what do you hold accountable?

         16                 I mean, where you have police have an

         17  imaginary trial, that is problematic. So, two things

         18  I would like to say is, what can we as a community

         19  do and what can the City Council do to actively take

         20  steps to repair, quite frankly, what is the

         21  accountability? What happens explicitly. We made an

         22  appointment with the CCRB and we know the stats, and

         23  a complaint may seem justified, but what happens to

         24  that police officer once the CCRB says, boom, he did

         25  something or she did something improper? What
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          2  happens? Do they lose pay? What happens?

          3                 We need to look at accountability.

          4  And I invite all of you to come and listen to the

          5  social work, listen to the panelists. We hope to

          6  include community members, Council members, police

          7  officers, everyone, to air our differences, but to

          8  also understand we are all on the same side. We all

          9  want a safe community. No one wants to have to tell

         10  our kids watch out for criminals, but also when you

         11  see a police officer, be careful, keep your hands in

         12  your pockets, no one wants that.

         13                 So we invite you there, we want to

         14  look at actively what are we going to do to make a

         15  difference now that we all know that that is the

         16  problem.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         19                 Venus Williams. Victor Morisete.

         20                 MR. MORISETE: Hi. My name is Victor

         21  Morisete, and I am from the Community Association of

         22  Progressive Maintenance.

         23                 I want to make some complete

         24  recommendations for you Council Members to take with

         25  you for implementation. So, it is not really
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          2  testimony.

          3                 I believe that there are six

          4  fundamental points that you can use to the

          5  legislative proposal.

          6                 One is that we require that all

          7  police officers have higher education. Those who are

          8  on the force now should be put back in training so

          9  that they get the degree that they need to deal with

         10  the issues of the different communities. That's the

         11  first point.

         12                 I believe that you, as a City

         13  Council, should mandate that anyone joining the

         14  Police Department is a resident of the City of New

         15  York. I think you should institute residency

         16  requirements for the Police Department.

         17                 I believe that you should develop

         18  legislation to strengthen the power of the Civilian

         19  Complain Review Board. I think that such legislation

         20  should give the Civilian Complaint Review Board

         21  prosecutorial power.

         22                 It should also make sure everywhere

         23  it is given to the CCRB, it is implemented. Take

         24  away the power of the Police Commissioner, and to

         25  follow through with those recommendations that the
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          2  CCRB makes, whatever they found on the case when

          3  substantiated.

          4                 Number four. I believe that there has

          5  to be an aggressive strategy to put Latino,

          6  African-American and Asian and other minorities into

          7  the Police Department.

          8                 Number five, eliminate the 48 hour

          9  requirement for police officers when they violate

         10  the law.

         11                 And make sure that police officers

         12  who are found in violation of civil rights, or

         13  criminal rights, such as what we saw with Mr.

         14  Diallo, officers like those should be stripped of

         15  their badge and taken away their revolver.

         16                 Number six, I think you should force

         17  the NYPD to institute a community policing program.

         18  Because they need to increase the communication

         19  between communities and police officers.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Sir, you put in

         22  a suggestion that I have a concern, and I want for

         23  you to clarify.

         24                 You said that you would like police

         25  officers to have education, and a higher education,
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          2  before they come to the police. If we implement a

          3  proposition like that now, what that would do is

          4  exclude Latinos and blacks that don't have that

          5  education now; do you understand that?

          6                 MR. MORISETE: I will suggest that

          7  this education has to be an aggressive recruitment

          8  strategy, therefore it is not a program that is

          9  required for people to have higher education level,

         10  that it is attached to an aggressive recruitment

         11  strategy to ensure that police officers have a very

         12  good understanding in particular with the issues.

         13                 And for example, with that

         14  improvement strategies or requirements, they should

         15  give points to those African-Americans or Latinos in

         16  police officers joining the force.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You are talking

         18  about like a recruit program where not necessarily

         19  they have to have the education at the moment that

         20  they get in, but that they will acquire that

         21  education?

         22                 MR. MORISETE: Absolutely. I think it

         23  goes hand-in-hand. The recruitment strategy and the

         24  requirements of the NYPD, it has to be a strategy

         25  works together. Therefore, if they give, if they set
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          2  a requirement with the recruitment that allows

          3  officers, or allows African-American and Latinos to

          4  have let's say ten points for the test, that is a

          5  way in which to help those officers as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          7  Juan Herarte.

          8                 MR. HERARTE: (In Spanish).

          9                 THE INTERPRETER:  His name is Juan

         10  Herarte. He was very grateful for you who have

         11  organized this giant forum tonight.

         12                 He say he has 15 sons, six of them

         13  are college graduates. He works --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Excuse me. We

         15  just received a notification and I have to make you

         16  aware of it.

         17                 There was a call that came in that

         18  there is a bomb, it is a bomb threat in the

         19  auditorium in this building and we should leave

         20  immediately.

         21                 (Speaking in Spanish).

         22                 We are willing to wait here for the

         23  four additional people that have to testify.

         24                 THE INTERPRETER: He says there is a

         25  police sergeant, a female, in Precinct 26, that has
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          2  been following him and harassing him every time he

          3  try to make a stop. The other day he went to the

          4  barber shop, he went in there because he doesn't

          5  want to be harassed by an officer, they followed him

          6  to the barber shop and arrested him. Then they made

          7  a false statement that he was selling on the street,

          8  that he is a distributor.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         10                 Manolo Gil.

         11                 MR. GIL: (In Spanish).

         12                 THE INTERPRETER: Mr. Manolo Gil say

         13  that was arrested by a black officer, jilted by a

         14  white judge and sentenced by him too, and now on

         15  parole, seeing a Hispanic Parole Officer.

         16                 He say that the United States, sooner

         17  or later they are going to turn into concentration

         18  camps. He reminds Council Member Linares in 1992

         19  that they don't shoot a police officer here, because

         20  they have respect. And he is going to be deported,

         21  because he is going back to his home land.  That's

         22  about it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         24                 Bentilio Reyes.

         25                 MR. REYES: (In Spanish).
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          2                 THE INTERPRETER: He say he is

          3  Bentilio Reyes-Gomez. He say Mr. Morisete's proposal

          4  is raising a double standard, because the Latino and

          5  Blacks are not allowed to enter the force. He say

          6  that the precinct needs a new captain who is more

          7  sensitive for our problems here in the community. He

          8  is calling for the members to call the Police

          9  Commissioner and analyze this problem. He said

         10  police should also be warned when they get the job

         11  they they shouldn't do something wrong.

         12                 He said in 1974 Hispanics were not

         13  allowed on the police force because they had to be

         14  six and seven feet tall. He mentioned the fact that

         15  he is tired of the politician talking and not doing

         16  anything.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Two more

         18  speakers. Robert Coleman, and followed by Luisa

         19  Sanchez.

         20                 MR. COLEMAN: I would like to take

         21  this time to thank you for the opportunity to speak

         22  out on this issue. I am third generation Washington

         23  Heights Stonian. My mother went to George Washington

         24  High School. And I went to P.S. 142, 133, and then I

         25  went to the Fashion Institute.
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          2                 I now reside in the same place that I

          3  bought, maybe about ten, 15 years ago. And I know

          4  the epidemic of drugs and other things go on, which

          5  I am very frightened because I felt that if nothing

          6  was done about it, I would have to move.

          7                 So, at this point in time, I would

          8  like to thank the Police Department and whoever is

          9  involved in straightening out the neighborhood as

         10  they have in my community.

         11                 However, I do have a slight problem

         12  with the Police Department because on several

         13  incidents, I was involved with apprehension and I

         14  felt that not only was I treated inhumanely, but I

         15  was treated cruely.

         16                 There was one incident where I went

         17  to the 34th Precinct to report that my ATM card was

         18  lost in the machine, and I wasn't sure whether it

         19  would come back out and I felt it was my duty to

         20  report it. And an officer walked up to me and asked

         21  me can I help you? Now, I was raged with the problem

         22  of the word can. No big deal, I didn't make an issue

         23  out of it. I just looked at the officer and I said,

         24  I don't know, can you? And in a way it was a

         25  sarcastic remark, but in a way it was true remark
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          2  because I wasn't sure if he was able to help me. And

          3  upon my saying this, he grabbed me by the scruff of

          4  my neck and the seat of my pants, and when he did

          5  that all the other officers came in and they all, I

          6  would like to say escorted me, they fortunately

          7  discharged me from the precinct.

          8                 Because of the incident -- well, let

          9  me back up a little. I am clinically depressed, and

         10  that situation brought up suicide, because I felt

         11  that being a resident of this community, if I am

         12  going to the Police Department for help, and I get

         13  treated in that manner, it was devastating to me.

         14  And there were several other incidents that I know

         15  of that I can talk about, as far as people being

         16  cheated, people being beaten, people being, you

         17  know, like people disappearing because of the Police

         18  Department, and I know that the majority of the

         19  police are law-abiding and they are doing the best

         20  they can and I commend them for that, but I wouldn't

         21  want to be in their shoes. I just feel that the ones

         22  that are not conducting themselves according to the

         23  books should be reprimanded and disciplined. I don't

         24  know what that reprimand should be or discipline

         25  should be, but something needs to be done.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 Luisa Sanchez.

          5                 You have the honor of being last.

          6                 MS. SANCHEZ: Thank you.

          7                 I wanted to tell a very short story

          8  of something that happened to me recently in

          9  Washington Heights. I have lived here forever, eight

         10  years.

         11                 I was walking with two friends, and a

         12  police officer in a patrol car stopped us, and

         13  insisted we tell him where are we headed. We were

         14  headed towards our car, and he insisted very

         15  arrogantly, and he let us go. It doesn't happen all

         16  the time, and my story that night, that is where it

         17  ended. And people here probably feel that it is a

         18  very trivial story, and it seems trivial precisely

         19  because the police come, obviously misbehaviored

         20  (sic) in this area. And for every person that has

         21  stopped here today, I can tell you that besides

         22  those people, there are hundreds more people that

         23  have been treated even worse, and I think the City

         24  Council right now should take the position to really

         25  counter the behavior of the police officers, and I
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          2  urge you to take action from hollow bullets to

          3  Street Crime Units, and also to educate the neighbor

          4  for the behavior of police officers. And that is all

          5  I have to say.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          8                 Right now I would like to ask a

          9  colleague who represents this particular area to say

         10  the last few words, Council Member Stan Michels.

         11                 I just wanted to thank the staff of

         12  Stanley Michels office, and I want to thank them

         13  publicly for all of their efforts of sending out the

         14  flyers and taking them throughout the community,

         15  trying to notify as many people as possible

         16  regarding this issue.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         18  Guillermo. Thank you for doing a great job. The

         19  Council is going to have another hearing on this

         20  issue on Monday at Goodard Community Center on

         21  Columbus Avenue and 88th Street, starting at 6:30

         22  p.m. You are invited, and if you want to tell some

         23  friends around that area, let them know.

         24                 I want to thank everybody for being

         25  here. We need to understand everything that is going
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          2  on in our communities and that is why we need to

          3  have these hearings. We thank you for coming out.

          4                 I want to thank the Council staff,

          5  the Sergeant-At-Arms, and everybody who participated

          6  in this effort.

          7                 Thank you, everybody, and get safely

          8  home.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 9:53 p.m.)
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